

CAJON VALLEY EDUCATION ASSOCIATION'S  
ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION  
BYLAWS  
STANDING RULES

REVISED BY THE CVEA'S EXECUTIVE BOARD

NOVEMBER 1985  
NOVEMBER 1990  
OCTOBER 1995  
OCTOBER 1998  
April 2005  
June 2007  
June 2008  
November 2009  
May 12, 2010

AMENDED BY THE CVEA'S REPRESENTATIVE COUNCIL

DECEMBER 1985  
DECEMBER 1990  
NOVEMBER 1995  
OCTOBER 1998  
April 2005  
June 2007  
June 2008  
November 2009  
May 12, 2010

ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION, BYLAWS AND STANDING RULES

CAJON VALLEY EDUCATION ASSOCIATION

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	<u>PAGE</u>
Articles of Incorporation	5
Bylaws	
Name and Location	10
Purposes	10
Affiliation with UEP	10
Membership	10
Dues, Fees and Assessments	12
Policy Making Body	12
Faculty Representatives	13
Officers	15
Executive Board	18
Bargaining Team	19
Grievance Processing	20
Nominations and Elections	21
Recall Elections	22
CTA State Council Representatives & NEA delegates	23
Committees	23
Meetings of the General Membership	23
Parliamentary Authority	23
Amendments	24
Standing Rules	
Headquarters	24
Fiscal & Membership year	25
Authorization of Delegates to Conventions	25
Senior Unit Representatives	25
Newsletter	25
Bargaining Team	25
Committees	26
Ethnic/Minority Guarantee	28
Grievance Processing	28
Procedure for Ratification of Contract	28

ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS

That we, the undersigned, do hereby associate ourselves together for the purpose of forming a corporation under the laws of the State of California, and we do hereby adopt the following Articles of Incorporation:

ARTICLE I.

The name of this corporation is Cajon Valley Education Association.

ARTICLE II.

A. The specific and primary purpose of this corporation shall be to serve as a single policy making body, representative of persons employed by the Cajon Valley Union School District serving in a position or positions requiring certification qualifications. It shall also be one of the primary purposes of this corporation to represent certificated employees of the Cajon Valley Union School District in their relations with said school district and the Board of Education of said school district, as public employees of such public agency.

B. The general purposes for which this corporation is formed are:

1. To afford the opportunity for the investigation of and for the expression and interchange of opinion upon subjects of special interest to certificated persons employed by the Cajon Valley Union School District; to promote the advancement of education; to further the educational interests of the Cajon Valley Union School District; to give increasing efficiency to its school system and as a part of the school

systems of the State of California; to secure and maintain for the teaching profession in public schools, its true rank among the professions of the State of California; and to furnish a practicable basis for united action devoted to the cause of education within the Cajon Valley Union School District in affiliation with other professional education organizations, the National Education Association, and particularly as a chapter of the California Teachers Association.

2. To exercise each and every one of the powers and purposes specified in Section 9501 of the Corporations Code of the State of California and all other powers and purposes now or hereafter authorized by law to be done or performed in furtherance of or incidental to or necessary to the primary purposes for which this corporation is being formed.

3. To do any and all things necessary and proper for the carrying out of said purposes in accordance with the laws of the State of California and in conformity with the rules of California Teachers Association regulating the chapters of said organization.

4. Notwithstanding any of the above statements of purposes and powers, this corporation shall not, except to an insubstantial degree, engage in any activities or exercise any powers that are not in furtherance of the primary purposes of this corporation.

### ARTICLE III.

The principal office for the transaction of business of this corporation is located in the County of San Diego, State of California.

ARTICLE IV

The names and addresses of persons who are appointed to act in the capacity of directors until the selection of their successors are:

<u>NAME</u>	<u>ADDRESS</u>
Warrick G. Carlson	7424 Margerum, San Diego, California
James Lawton	1592 Don Carol Avenue, El Cajon, California
Glen D. Paul	#19, 9041 El Dorado Parkway, El Cajon, California
Thomas W. Womack 775 Valley Village Drive, El Cajon, California	

ARTICLE V

Those persons serving in a position or positions requiring certification qualifications in the employment of the Cajon Valley Union School District shall be entitled to be members of this corporation. The qualifications and other requirements of membership shall be provided for in the by-laws of this corporation, which shall not, however, provide for the issuance of more than one membership to any member.

ARTICLE VI

Upon liquidation, dissolution or abandonment of this corporation, all of its assets shall go and be distributed to an educational fund, foundation or corporation, or a non-profit professional teachers' association in the State of California, as may be selected by a majority of the members of this corporation. (To be used when incorporating an unincorporated association).

ARTICLE VII



Warrick G. Carlson and James Lawton being first duly sworn, each for himself, deposes and says:

That Warrick G. Carlson is the president and that James Lawton is the secretary of Cajon Valley Education Association, the unincorporated association mentioned in the foregoing Articles of Incorporation; that said association has duly authorized its incorporation and has authorized the undersigned, as said officers, to execute the Articles of Incorporation.

\_\_\_\_\_

President

\_\_\_\_\_

Secretary

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 4th day of April, 1968.

BYLAWS  
CAJON VALLEY EDUCATION ASSOCIATION

I. NAME AND LOCATION

The name of this Association shall be the Cajon Valley Education Association/CTA/NEA (CVEA/CTA/NEA) in San Diego County.

II. PURPOSES

The primary purposes of CVEA shall be:

1. To represent it's membership in their relations with their employer and to seek to be the exclusive representative of appropriate units of school employees in all matters relating to employment conditions and employer-employee relations including, but not limited to, wages, hours and other terms and conditions of employment.
2. To form a representative body capable of developing group opinion on professional matters and to speak with authority to teachers.
3. To provide an opportunity for continuous study and action on problems of the profession.
4. To provide a means of representation for it's ethnic-minority members.

5. To promote professional attitudes and ethical conduct among members.
6. To encourage cooperation and communication between the profession and the community.
7. To foster good fellowship among members.
8. To raise the standards of the teaching profession.
9. To advance the general welfare of the schools.

### III. AFFILIATION WITH THE UNITED EDUCATION PROFESSION (UEP)

1. CVEA shall be a chartered member of the California Teachers Association (CTA)
2. CVEA shall be an affiliated local association of the National Education Association (NEA)

### IV. MEMBERSHIP

1. Active. Active membership shall be open to any person who is employed by or who is on leave of absence from the Cajon Valley Union School District as a regularly certificated person, not receiving compensation on the basis of an administrative or supervisory credential.
2. Associate. Associate membership shall be open to day-to-day substitute teachers, part-time teachers and hourly teachers whose anticipated annual earnings are less than the minimum salary for credentialed teachers under contract to the Cajon Valley Union School District.
3. Retired. Retired membership shall be open to any retired member who has held active membership in CVEA for a total of ten years.
4. Membership may be granted upon initiation of payroll deduction or upon payment of UEP dues appropriate to the class of membership.
5. The right to vote and to hold elective office or an appointed position within CVEA shall be limited to Active members.
6. All members shall be eligible to receive special services, to obtain assistance in the protection of professional and civil rights and to receive reports and publications of CVEA, CTA and NEA.

7. An individual who is serving as a negotiator for a public school employer shall not be eligible for membership in CVEA.
8. Active members shall adhere to The Code of Ethics of the Education Profession.
9. The rights to and privileges of membership shall not be abridged in a way because of age, sex, race, color, ethnic group, marital status, national origin or sexual orientation.
10. No member of CVEA may be disciplined without due process hearing which shall include the established appellate procedure.
11. The membership year shall be that period of time from September 1 of any calendar year through August 31 of the following calendar year.
12. Membership categories shall not compete with those of another UEP chapter within the same employing jurisdiction.
13. Members have the right to be present at all meetings in which CVEA business is conducted.
14. Members have the right to present matters of individual concern to the Representative Council, personally or through the faculty representative.
15. Members will actively support and promote the stated purpose and programs of CVEA, CTA and NEA.
16. Members conform to the Code of Ethics of the Education Profession adopted by CTA and NEA.
17. CVEA shall require membership in CTA and NEA.

V. DUES, FEES AND ASSESSMENTS

1. The amount of dues shall be determined by the Representative Council before the last regular meeting in June. The amount shall include membership in CTA and NEA. CVEA shall apportion any negotiated representation fee or organizational security fee on the same percentage basis as the full United Education Profession.
2. Membership in a given class or category shall be continuous after initial enrollment or until a change in professional status shall make the member ineligible for that class or category. If by October 31 of any calendar year a member has not either paid the established dues for the current

membership year or made satisfactory arrangement for payment, then that person's membership shall be considered delinquent and than name dropped from the rolls.

3. Dues of Associate members shall be one-half the dues of Active members.
4. Dues of retired members shall be one-twentieth the dues of Active members.

## VI. POLICY MAKING BODY

1. The policy making body of CVEA shall be the Representative Council. The Representative Council, comprising of Active members of CVEA derives it's powers from and shall be responsible to the membership. The Representative Council shall apply the one person – one vote principles except that the chapter shall take such steps as are legally permissible to achieve steps as are legally permissible to achieve ethnic minority representation at least proportionate to it's ethnic minority membership.
2. The Representative Council shall be composed of the following Active members:
  - a. Executive Board
  - b. Faculty representatives elected on the bases of one person – one vote.
  - c. All Committee chairpersons
3. The Representative Council shall:
  - a. Establish CVEA policies and objectives
  - b. Adopt the annual budget of CVEA prior to the first meeting of the school year.
  - c. Approve the establishment or discontinuance of committees recommended by the Executive Board.
  - d. Establish the dues of CVEA
4. The Representative Council shall meet at least seven times in any one given calendar year through June 30 of the following calendar year, date, place, and time of meetings shall be decided by the executive board.
5. Special meetings of the Representative Council may be called by the President, the Executive Board or by a petition of twenty percent of the membership.
6. Special meetings of the Representative Council shall be called for a specific purpose and no business other than that which the meeting is called may be transacted.

7. Notices for all meetings, prior meeting minutes and the prior monthly budget of the Representative Council shall be sent to all members of the Representative Council at least two days prior to the meeting.
8. For emergency meetings of the Representative Council during crisis situations the Executive Board shall adopt procedures to notify representatives of; date, place and time of such emergency meetings.
9. A quorum for all meetings of the Representative Council shall consist of all voting Faculty Representatives present at the meeting of the Representative Council.
10. Members of the Representative Council shall serve a term of one (1) year. (Except of the Directors at Large whose terms are for two (2) years).

## VII. FACULTY REPRESENTATIVES

1. Faculty Representatives shall be elected by and from the Active membership for each faculty group. Such election shall be by open nominations and by secret ballot.
2. Each faculty shall be entitled to a least one Faculty Representative and shall have one Faculty Representative for each 10 Active members on the faculty.
3. Active members who are not represented through an individual school faculty group shall be counted as a special faculty group entitled to the same representation of the Representative Council as individual school faculty groups.
4. Faculty Representatives shall:
  - a. Conduct constant and ongoing liaison between the Representative Council and the faculty unit.
  - b. Serve as the official channel through which written communication and publications can be easily and quickly transmitted between CVEA and the Active members.
  - c. Represent the views and input of the Active membership of the faculty group in votes taken in the Representative Council, conducting frequent and regular polls of such membership for this purpose.

d. Perform such additional duties as prescribed by the Executive Board.

5. A vacancy may be deemed to exist when a Faculty Representative is absent At two consecutive meetings without sending an alternate or is elected or appointed to another position on the Representative Council. In the event a vacancy occurs at a school site a special election may be held to elect a successor to fill the un-expired term. The need to hold a special election will be determined by the Executive Board.
6. Approve or reject all reports and recommendations of committees and/or the Executive Board before such reports and recommendations are implemented by the Executive Board.
7. Propose amendments to these Bylaws.
8. Propose, adopt and amend the Standing Rules of CVEA.
9. Take other necessary and proper action to implement these Bylaws and to further the purpose of CVEA as stated in these Bylaws.
10. Attend each meeting of the Representative Council or provide an alternate in accordance with the procedures of these Bylaws and Standing Rules.
11. Use all appropriate means of communication to the end that constituents shall be informed of the activities of CVEA, CTA, and NEA.
12. Determine by all appropriate means of communication, the opinions and needs of constituents on all professional matters and report them to the Representative Council or other appropriate CVEA personnel.
13. Provide appropriate counsel and assistance to constituents in order that all the services and benefits of membership shall be known and available.
14. Give leadership to constituents in support of the policies and programs of CVEA.
15. Organize and oversee elections within the school.
16. Monitor the enrollment of members within the school.
15. **Super Rep commitment and Reward**

Commitment:

- 1) 100% meeting attendance
- 2) 100% membership at site
- 3) 100% note submission from 10 minute meeting

If all of these standards are met the Faculty Rep shall have their local dues refunded.

## VIII. OFFICERS

1. The officers of CVEA shall be President, Vice-President, Secretary and Treasurer.
2. These officers shall be and remain currently paid-up members as a condition for nomination to the service in their respective position during their term in office.
3. These officers shall be elected by and from the Active membership of CVEA. Such election shall be by open nominations and secret ballot by the general membership. A majority of votes cast shall be required for election.
4. Officers shall be elected for two years, (President and Secretary in even years) (Vice-President and Treasurer in odd years) commencing on July 1
5. The immediate Past-President shall serve on the Executive Board and shall serve as Second Vice-President.
6. A vacancy shall be deemed to exist in the case of death, resignation or inability to serve in any of the offices of CVEA. In the event of a vacancy occurring in the office of the President, the Vice-President shall assume the office. In the event of a vacancy occurs in the other offices, a special election shall be held to elect successors to fill the un-expired term.
7. The President shall:
  - a. Be the chief executive officer of CVEA and its policy leader.
  - b. Preside at all meetings of CVEA, the Representative Council and the Executive Board.
  - c. Prepare the agenda for meetings of the Representative Council and the Executive Board.
  - d. Serve as ex-officio member of all committees.
  - e. Appoint all chairpersons and/or members of committees and of the bargaining team, subject to the approval of the Executive Board and the Representative Council.

- f. Appoint a Parliamentarian to serve as advisor regarding parliamentary procedure at CVEA meetings.
  - g. Call special meetings of CVEA whenever necessary.
  - h. Countersign checks drawn on the funds of CVEA.
  - i. Serve as official spokesperson for CVEA.
  - j. Suggest policies, plans and activities for CVEA and be responsible.
  - k. Attend UEP meetings as directed by the membership or his/her alternate shall attend.
  - l. Attend meetings of the Service Center Council of which CVEA is a part or his/her alternate shall attend.
  - m. Perform other necessary duties as may be directed by the Executive Board and Representative Council.
  - n. Be paid a stipend equal to 20% of his/her salary placement in the salary schedule for the Cajon Valley School District.
  - o. Write checks or expend any monies up to \$300 without the approval of the Executive Board when appropriate.
8. The Vice-President shall:
- a. Assume the duties of the President in case of absence and in the event of the resignation or removal from office of the President shall succeed to that office for the remainder of the term.
  - b. Coordinate the activities of all CVEA committees and serve as an ex-officio member.
  - c. Provide assistance when requested by the President.
  - d. Serve as a representative to the Service Center Council when representative quota allows an additional representative or his/her alternate shall attend.
  - e. Serve as a coordinator of CVEA committee activities and CVEA's calendar under the direction of the President.
  - f. Perform other necessary duties as may be directed by the Executive Board or the Representative Council.
  - g. In the absence of either the President or Treasurer, the Vice President may countersign checks drawn on funds of the CVEA.
9. The Secretary shall:
- a. Keep a record of all proceedings of the Executive Board and the Representative Council. Such records shall be open to any member.
  - b. Send a copy, one week prior to the next meeting to each member of the appropriate aforesaid CVEA body.
  - c. Keep a record of attendance at all meetings of the Executive Board and Representative Council and keep the President informed of unexcused
  - d. Maintain a record of all elected and appointed officers,

representatives and committee members and their respective terms of office.

- e. Secure at the beginning of each school year a list of all certificated employees, their assignments and keep the list current.
  - f. Maintain an accurate roster of CVEA membership.
  - g. Carry on the correspondence pertaining to the affairs of CVEA as directed by the President.
  - h. Prepare ballots for all elections.
  - i. Perform other necessary duties as may be directed by the Executive Board or the Representative Council.
10. The Treasurer shall:
- a. Maintain a record of all receipts and expenditures and present this information in a financial report at regular meetings of the Executive Board, the Representative Council and to CTA, NEA and other agencies required by law.
  - b. Make records open to inspection by any member upon reasonable request.
  - c. Collect and deposit in a financial institution designated by the Executive Board.
  - d. Issue and sign checks drawn on CVEA funds as authorized by the Executive Board.
  - e. Serve as a member of the membership committee and maintain a current membership count.
  - f. Shall have CVEA financial records audited in a manner to meet legal requirements (a committee of CVEA meets legal requirements).
  - g. Perform other necessary duties as may be directed by the Executive Board or the Representative Council.

## IX. EXECUTIVE BOARD

1. The executive authority shall be vested in a Executive Board consisting of the elected officers, the Past-President and six Area Representatives.
2. All members of the Executive Board shall be and remain members of the UEP as a condition for nomination to and service in this position.
3. The Area Representatives of the Executive Board shall be elected with open nominations and by secret ballot.
4. Three Area Representatives shall be for a two (2) year term, commencing on September 1, of any calendar year.

5. The Executive Board shall meet prior to each regular meeting of the Representative Council and at such times as the President may deem necessary or upon written petition of four (4) members of the Executive Board.
6. A vacancy on the Executive Board shall be deemed to exist in the case of death, resignation, recall, inability to serve or failure to execute the duties of the office.
7. Vacancies of elected officers on the Executive Board shall be filled by a special election and from the Active members of CVEA except where succession by other elected officers is specified.
8. Absence from two (2) consecutive meetings or a total of three (3) meetings without proper excuse acceptable by a majority of the remainder of the Executive Board shall be cause for the Executive Board to declare the seat vacant.
9. A quorum for all meetings of the Executive Board shall consist of six (6) members of the Executive Board.
10. The duties of the Executive Board shall be to:
  - a. Coordinate the activities of CVEA
  - b. Act for the Representative Council during July and August of any calendar year.
  - c. Appoint and remove bargaining team members.
  - d. Approve committee appointments.
  - e. Exercise all the business and organizational powers and duties for CVEA as prescribed by law and these Bylaws, subject to any restrictions which may be imposed by the Representative Council.
  - f. Supervise the administration of CVEA and implement the policies established by the Representative Council.
  - g. Appoint and remove employees of CVEA, determine their qualifications, fix their compensations, define their duties and require such agreements and bonds as may be necessary to ensure faithful service.
  - h. Provide for an annual audit of the Treasurer's books.
  - i. Prepare the budget and recommend changes in membership dues of necessary to the Representative Council.
  - j. Prepare and submit recommendations or plans to the Representative Council for its consideration.
  - k. Plan and conduct CVEA meetings, workshops and training conferences as needed.
  - l. Assist the President in appointment responsibilities.

- m. Assist committees in defining their immediate and long range objectives.
- n. Review committee plans and progress as necessary and arbitrate jurisdictional disputes between committees.
- o. Supervise and control all property of CVEA.
- p. Recommend for the approval of the Representative Council the Standing Rules of CVEA and amendments thereto.
- q. Direct the bargaining activities and grievance processing of CVEA, subject to policies set by the Representative Council.
- r. Perform other necessary duties as may be directed by the Representative Council.

X. BARGAINING TEAM

- 1. The bargaining team and such alternates as the Executive Board deems necessary shall be nominated by the President and approved by the Executive Board.
- 2. The members of the Bargaining Team and such alternates as the Executive Board deems necessary, shall be appointed by the President and ratified by the Executive Board.  
Vacancies created by resignation or inability to serve shall be filled by the President and ratified by the Executive Board.

The Executive Board of CVEA, by a two thirds (2/3) majority, may remove a member of the Bargaining Team and appoint a replacement from the list of alternates.

The duties of the Bargaining Team is to represent and to bargain for the exclusive bargaining agent (CVEA) representing the Certificated Employees Unit. The Certificated Employees Unit includes; All Teachers, Resource Specialists, credentialed designated Instructional Service personnel, Teachers of Special Day Special Education classes, Preschool Teachers, Teachers of Extended Learning programs, Chapter 1 Teachers, Counselors, Librarians, Psychologists and School Nurses.

Responsibility and authority for directing the bargaining process on behalf of CVEA is vested in the Executive Board of CVEA subject to policies established by the membership.

The Bargaining Team shall be limited to no more than one (1) member per school.

Employees in each appropriate certificated employee unit shall be surveyed to determine contents of the proposed contract demands.

The Bargaining Team shall report its activities to the Executive Board of CVEA in such form and with such frequency as the Executive Board of CVEA may require.

The Executive Board of CVEA shall provide the dissemination of information regarding bargaining and the activities of the Bargaining Team to the general membership of CVEA, as they deem necessary.

3. Procedure for ratification of contract is listed under STANDING RULE 10.

#### XI. GRIEVANCE PROCESSING PROCEDURES

The Executive Board shall adopt, with the approval of the Representative Council, the procedures for grievance processing. The Executive Board shall adopt, with the approval of the Representative Council, the procedures for grievance processing.

These procedures shall include, but not limited to, the following:

1. Provide for representation to assist all members of the bargaining unit(s) in processing grievances;
2. Training for handling grievances; and
3. Evaluation of the Association's grievance policies and procedures.

#### XII. NOMINATIONS AND ELECTIONS

1. Notifications of offices open for election, nomination procedures and election time lines shall be posted in all customary and appropriate locations.
2. The chapter president must provide Active members an opportunity to vote in all elections. Chapter presidents do not have the option of deciding that such elections shall not be held.

#### **PROVISION FOR/COMPOSITION OF THE ELECTIONS COMMITTEE**

**There shall be an appointed Elections Committee.**

Elections shall be conducted with:

1. Open nomination procedure;
2. Secret ballot
3. All active members vote;
4. Record of voters receiving or casting ballots;
5. Majority vote, unless otherwise specified.
6. State Council Representative elections shall be conducted in accordance with CTA guidelines after the chapter or service center council has been notified to do so by the CTA Election Committee.

NEA State Delegate elections shall be conducted in accordance with CTA guidelines.

NEA Local Delegate elections shall be conducted in accordance with NEA/CTA election guidelines.

The duties of the Election Committee shall be to:

1. Ensure that all Chapter/CTA/NEA election codes and timelines are followed;
2. Establish election timelines;
3. Develop and carry out timelines and procedures;
4. Prepare ballots for election of officers and such other elections as may be necessary;
5. Count the ballots and certify the results;
6. Handle initial challenges.

- a. Any Active member, at his/her request, shall have their name placed upon the ballot for an office of CVEA, if they qualify for that office according to the Bylaws and Standing Rules of CVEA.
- b. The name of any Active member may be placed in nomination from the floor at the appropriate Representative Council meeting by any other member, with the consent of the nominee if they qualify for that office according to the Bylaws and Standing Rules of CVEA

2. Elections of officers, Directors-at-Large, CTA State Council representatives and NEA delegates shall be conducted prior to June 15 by secret ballot of the general membership.
3. Faculty representatives shall be elected by open nominations and secret ballot by the from the Active members who are assigned to that faculty.
4. The President shall appoint an Election Committee and chairperson, subject to the approval of the Executive Board and the Representative Council to conduct all elections of CVEA.
5. The Executive Board shall adopt Standing Rules setting forth the procedures for conducting elections.
6. CVEA will provide equitable treatment of candidates in campaigning, no dues assessments or similar levies will be provided for the promotion of any candidate.
7. All ballots will be retained at the CVEA office for at least one year.
8. If any CVEA officer election has only one candidate running unopposed, the candidate can be elected by acclamation by the Faculty Representative Council.

### XIII. RECALL ELECTIONS

1. A recall of any person in an elective position may be initiated by a petition signed by one-third of the Active membership of his/her particular constituency. A statement of the reasons for the proposed recall shall be part of the recall petition.
2. Each person named in the recall petition shall have the right to make a rebuttal statement which shall be distributed to his/her constituency a least seven days before the recall election.
3. Recall elections shall be by secret ballot and the results will be determined by a simple majority vote of the Active membership of CVEA that voted.

### XIV. CTA STATE COUNCIL REPRESENTATIVES AND NEA DELEGATES

1. All representatives to CTA State Council and the NEA Representative Assembly to which CVEA is entitled shall be elected by and from the Active membership of CVEA.
2. CTA State Council representatives shall be elected for a term specified by CTA.
3. NEA delegates shall be elected for a term as specified by NEA.

### XV. COMMITTEES

1. Committees, except as otherwise provided in these Bylaws, may be established and discontinued by the Executive Board, subject to approval by the Representative Council.
2. Each committee shall submit periodic reports to the Executive Board and Representative Council.
3. The President shall appoint all chairpersons and members of committees and the Bargaining Team, subject to approval of the Executive Board and Representative Council.

### XVI. MEETINGS OF THE GENERAL MEMBERSHIP

1. A general meeting of CVEA may be called by the President, the Executive Board or by written petition of twenty percent (20%) of the membership.

2. Notices for general meetings of CVEA including date, place, time and purpose of the meeting shall be made available to all members of CVEA at least two days prior to the meeting except during crisis situations.
3. For emergency meetings during crisis situations, the Executive Board shall adopt procedures to notify CVEA members of meeting dates, places and times.
4. A quorum for a general meeting of CVEA shall consist of all Active members present.

#### XVII. PARLIAMENTARY AUTHORITY

Robert's Rules of Order, newly revised, latest edition, shall be followed at all meetings of CVEA.

#### XVIII. AMENDMENTS

1. These Bylaws may be amended by a two-thirds (2/3) vote of the Faculty Representatives present at any regular or special meeting of the Representative Council provided notice in writing of proposed Bylaws amendment shall have been submitted to the Secretary and made available to all members of the Representative Council at the meeting preceding the one at which it is to be voted upon.
2. Unless otherwise specified in the amendment, an amendment becomes effective immediately upon adoption.

STANDING RULES  
CAJON VALLEY EDUCATION ASSOCIATION (CVEA)

STANDING RULE 1 – Headquarters Office

- 1.1 The local headquarters office of CVEA shall be located at 9015 Grossmont Blvd., La Mesa, CA 91941, in San Diego County. Telephone (619) 460-3465

STANDING RULE 2 – Fiscal and membership year

- 2.1 The fiscal and membership year of CVEA shall be from September 1 of any given calendar to August 31 of the following calendar year.

STANDING RULE 3 – Authorization of delegates to conventions and special meetings

- 3.1 No person shall have the authority to attend conventions and other professional meetings as an official delegate or representative of CVEA unless such representation has been approved by the Executive Board of CVEA.

STANDING RULE 4 – Senior Unit Representative

- 4.1 In units having multiple representation of the Representative Council, Section Council, or State Council, the representative senior in length of service shall act as chairperson from that unit for purposes of communication and coordination. When there are two or more of equal length of service, the unit representatives shall elect a chairperson.

STANDING RULE 5 – Newsletter

- 5.1 Official publication of CVEA shall be known as the B.U.M. Wrap. The editor shall be appointed by the Executive Board of CVEA.

STANDING RULE 6 – Bargaining Team

- 6.1 The members of the Bargaining Team and such alternates as the Executive

Board deems necessary, shall be appointed by the President and ratified by the Executive Board.

- 6.2 Vacancies created by resignation or inability to serve shall be filled by the President and ratified by the Executive Board.
- 6.3 The Executive Board of CVEA, by a two thirds (2/3) majority, may remove a member of the Bargaining Team and appoint a replacement from the list of alternates.
- 6.4 The duties of the Bargaining Team is to represent and to bargain for the exclusive bargaining agent (CVEA) representing the Certificated Employees Unit. The Certificated Employees Unit includes; All Teachers, Resource Specialists, credentialed designated Instructional Service personnel, Teachers of Special Day Special Education classes, Preschool Teachers, Teachers of Extended Learning programs, Chapter 1 Teachers, Counselors, Librarians, Psychologists and School Nurses.
- 6.5 Responsibility and authority for directing the bargaining process on behalf of CVEA is vested in the Executive Board of CVEA subject to policies established by the membership.
- 6.6 The Bargaining Team shall be limited to no more than one (1) member per school.
- 6.7 Employees in each appropriate certificated employee unit shall be surveyed to determine contents of the proposed contract demands.
- 6.8 The Bargaining Team shall report it's activities to the Executive Board of CVEA in such form and with such frequency as the Executive Board of CVEA may require.
- 6.9 The Executive Board of CVEA shall provide the dissemination of information regarding bargaining and the activities of the Bargaining Team to the general membership of CVEA, as they deem necessary.
- 6.10 Agreements reached between the Bargaining Team and the Cajon Valley Union School District Governing Board or it's representative(s) shall be considered tentative and not binding upon CVEA until such agreements have been ratified by the membership in the appropriate certificated employee unit unless such ratification shall have been specifically waived or otherwise delegated by the membership of CVEA.

#### STANDING RULE 7 – Committees

- 7.1 An Election Committee of two (2) to five (5) members shall be appointed at or

prior to the November Representative Council meeting.

- 7.11 Nominations for office shall be made as follows:
  - a. Any Active member, at their request, shall have their name placed upon the ballot for an office of CVEA, if they qualify for that office according to the Bylaws of CVEA.
  - b. The name of any Active member may be placed in nomination by any other member, with the consent of the nominee if they qualify for that office according to the Bylaws of CVEA.
  
- 7.12 The Election Committee shall establish the date and announce procedures for the election and distribution of ballots at the May Representative Council meeting.
  
- 7.13 The Election Committee shall conduct an election prior to June 15.
  
- 7.14 The Election Committee shall count the ballots and announce the results to the membership of CVEA.
  
- 7.15 No candidate for office shall serve on the Election Committee.
  
- 7.2 The Grievance Committee shall be responsible for implementing CVEA's grievance program.
  - 7.21 Provide representative(s) to assist members of the bargaining unit in processing grievances.
  
  - 7.22 Represent CVEA at grievance proceedings whenever a member of the bargaining unit is processing a grievance without the assistance of CVEA.
  
  - 7.23 Make recommendations to the Executive Board of CVEA regarding the budget for grievance processing and arbitration costs and shall keep the Executive Board of CVEA informed of the operation of the grievance program.
  
  - 7.24 Consider the merits of each grievance and make recommendations to the Executive Board of CVEA regarding the submission of a grievance to arbitration.
  
  - 7.25 Keep a record of all grievances processed.
  
  - 7.26 Provide training, resources and support for CVEA's grievance

representative(s) at each certificated employee unit.

7.27 Study CVEA's grievance processing policies and program and make recommendations to the Executive Board of CVEA for maintaining and improving their effectiveness.

7.3 The Political Action Committee shall:

7.31 Shall establish separate from CVEA, Bylaws, bank account, political ID# and IRS#. (See Political Action Bylaws, Attachment 1).

7.32 Maintain a continuing study of proposed legislation affecting schools and members of CVEA's bargaining unit.

7.33 Keep the membership informed regarding such proposed legislation and it's progress while the Legislature is in session.

7.34 Propose and carry out methods for CVEA to support the legislative program.

7.35 Give to the membership information about the records and opinions of candidates for School Board, Legislature and Congress regarding questions affecting schools and members of CVEA's bargaining unit.

7.36 Plan any activities designed to establish with State and National Legislators representing CVEA's area.

#### STANDING RULE 8 – Ethnic/Minority Guarantee

8.1 Prior to the November meeting of the Representative Council, the Secretary of CVEA shall ascertain the ethnic-minority representation on the Representative Council. If the representation falls below the ratio of ethnic-minority members to the total membership, the Executive Board of CVEA shall arrange for a special election to raise the minimum representation to the appropriate number.

#### STANDING RULE 9 – Grievance Processing

9.1 The Executive Board of CVEA shall provide for representation to assist all members in the bargaining unit in processing grievances.

9.2 The Executive Board of CVEA shall provide training to the grievance representative(s) for the handling at each site.

9.3 If a member of the bargaining unit, who is not a member of CVEA, wishes to

have a grievance processed at the arbitration level of the grievance procedure, such person must elect to pay either their pro rate share of the cost of arbitration or the equivalent of the annual dues of CVEA, CTA and NEA, whichever is less.

STANDING RULE 10 – Procedures for ratification of the contract

- 10.1 After all articles of the proposed contract have been tentatively agreed upon between the Bargaining Team and the Cajon Valley Union School District's representative(s), they shall be printed and made available to all persons in the bargaining unit.
- 10.2 No changes can be made in this agreement. It must be ratified or rejected in its entirety.
- 10.3 Voting shall be done by secret ballot. All persons in the bargaining unit are eligible to vote on the proposed contract.
- 10.4 Ballots shall be counted by the Executive Board.
- 10.5 A simple majority vote shall determine the acceptance or rejection of the proposed contract.
- 10.6 Persons in the bargaining unit will be notified through their Faculty Representative regarding the results of voting.
- 10.7 After acceptance by CVEA and the Governing Board of the Cajon Valley Union School District, it shall be in effect until the expiration date of the contract.

STANDING RULE 11 – Organizational Security

- 11.1 Each certificated employee, who after the effective date of the contract agreement between the Cajon Valley Education Association and the Cajon Valley Union School District is a member of the Association and each individual who becomes a member after that date, shall maintain such membership for the duration of the contract including the extension thereof.
- 11.2 Any unit member who is not a member of CVEA/CTA/NEA, or who does not make application for membership within thirty (30) days commencement of assigned duties within the bargaining unit shall:
  - a. Become a member of the Association through payroll deduction or pay the annual dues in one (1) lump sum payment to the Association, or
  - b. Pay a service fee, the amount of which is determined by the Association

and authorized by Section 3540.1(i)(2) of the Government Code and consistent with legal requirements provided that it shall be the sole responsibility of the Association to ensure that such fee is legally determined and legally appropriate. The fee may be paid through payroll deduction or may be paid in one (1) lump sum payment to the Association, or

- c. Request exemption status from the Association based on long-standing philosophical beliefs or membership in a religious body with tradition tenets or teachings which include objections to joining or financially supporting employee organizations. The fee must be paid to a non-religious, non-labor charitable organization which is exempt from Section 501 ©(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. To receive an exemption, the unit member must submit a detailed written statement establishing the basis for the exemption. The Association Executive Board shall communicate in writing to the unit member it's acceptance or rejection of the exemption. If accepted, the fee must be paid in full to an acceptable charity on or prior to the due date for cash/fees for each school year.

- 11.3 In the event that a non-member does not pay a fee directly to the Association or qualify for an exemption, the school district shall begin automatic payroll deduction as provided in Education Code Section 45061. The bargaining unit member will become an Agency Fee Payer.

**BY-LAWS**  
**CAJON VALLEY EDUCATION ASSOCIATION POLITICAL ACTION**  
**COMMITTEE**

**ARTICLE 1. – PURPOSES**

The Cajon Valley Education Association Political Action Committee is established for the following purposes:

1.1 To inform members of legislation, voting records and positions of legislators and candidates that may affect the member's classroom, working conditions, rights and benefits.

1.2 To serve as a voluntary funding structure through which CVEA members may give direct and indirect financial contributions support or oppose such

- (a) State and local candidates for office;
- (b) State and local issues (including ballot measures)

as deemed worthy of support (or opposition) from the standpoint of educational issues without regard to partisan consideration.

1.3 It is the intent of the Cajon Valley Education association political Action Committee to work in a cooperative manner, rather than in isolation from other district employee groups, to support our schools in an effective way.

**ARTICLE II. – OFFICERS**

2.1 Composition – Officers shall be a Chairperson, Treasurer and such other officers as are deemed necessary by the Cajon

Valley Education Association Political Action Committee.

2.2 The Chairperson and Treasurer will be appointed by the President of CVEA with the approval of the CVEA Executive Board. The remaining officers will be appointed by the Chairperson of the Cajon Valley Education Association Political Action Committee.

2.3 The terms of office will be for the full term of the President of CVEA. Officers may continue to serve as long as they keep the support of the CVEA Executive Board and wish to continue their positions.

### **ARTICLE III. – FUNDING**

3.1 A voluntary amount of up to \$0.50 per member per month will be placed in the account of the Cajon Valley Education Association Political Action Committee from current member local contributions. These monies will remain segregated from the general membership account. Any change in the amount must be approved by the CVEA Representative Council.

3.2 Amounts may be spent for any purpose deemed to be consistent with the statement of purposes of the group as judged by the Cajon Valley Education Political Action Committee with the approval of the CVEA Executive Board and advice from the CVEA Representative Council. The following guidelines will be used as procedures:

3.21 Amounts up to \$99.00 may be spent by the Chairperson with the approval of the Treasurer without previous authorization of the CVEA Executive Board. Reports of these expenditure will be made to the CVEA Executive Board on a regular basis.

3.22 Amounts of between \$99.00 and \$499.00 may be spent with the approval of the CVEA Executive Board. Reports of these expenditures will be made to the CVEA Representative Council on a regular basis.

3.23 Amounts over \$499.00 may only be spent with prior approval of both the CVEA Executive Board and CVEA Representative Council.

3.24 Funds approved as line items in a budget that has been approved by the CVEA Executive Board and the CVEA

Representative Council may be spent without additional approval. These expenditures will be included in the

regular reports to the CVEA Executive Board and CVEA Representative Council.

3.3 No amount of funding or support in kind can be given to:

(a) Support or oppose any city or county school board candidate or community college board candidate unless they are considered supported or endorsed by CVEA.

(b) Support or oppose a local educational initiative or ballot measure unless this is consistent with the position of CVEA.

3.4 Funds may be spent for either candidates or issues. Funding for candidates will be considered to be spent from Section A

of this committee. Funds for issues will be considered Section B expenses. Separate books will be kept for each section.

(a) Funds may be used to support candidates for state or local office, or for the Cajon Valley Union School District school board endorsed by Cajon Valley Education Association Political Action Committee, CVEA Executive Board and CVEA Representative Council following the procedures in Article IV.

(b) Funds may be spent to support or oppose issues or ballot measures following the procedures in Article IV.

#### **ARTICLE IV. – ENDORSEMENT PROCEDURES**

4.1 Candidates and officeholders endorsed by CVEA will be deemed endorsed unless action is taken by the Cajon Valley Education Association Political Action Committee. CVEA Executive Board and CVEA Representative Council to withhold endorsement.

4.2 The Cajon Valley Education Association Political Action Committee may become involved in the endorsement process by interviewing candidates or legislators of state level office and forwarding recommendations to CTA.

4.3 The Cajon Valley Education Association Political Action Committee may endorse a candidate for local office such as school board after a thorough and fair process which:

4.31(a) All candidates are given equal access to the committee and a good faith effort has been made to determine their positions on important issues facing education.

(b) Spokespeople for both sides of an issue or ballot measure are given equal access to the committee and a good faith effort has been made to determine the facts and relevance to education.

4.32 Recommendations for endorsements are made by the Cajon Valley Education Association Political Action Committee, adopted by the CVEA Executive Board and ratified by the CVEA Representative Council.

4.33 For school board elections and other elections that have a direct impact on other employee groups, the Cajon Valley Education Association Political Action Committee will make every effort to establish ways of coordinating the endorsement process with other association such as the Classified and Administrative Associations to reach consensus on endorsements.

4.4 No funds or support in kind may be spent on non-endorsed candidates.

4.5 The Cajon Valley Education Association Political Action Committee may issue endorsement letters or statements of endorsement with reasons for the endorsement for purposes of press releases or member education after approval of the CVEA Executive Board.

## **ARTICLE V. – MEMBERSHIP AND MEETINGS**

5.1 Any member may request to be on the Cajon Valley Education Association Political Action Committee and may serve with the consent of the CVEA Executive Board.

5.2 Meetings will be called by the Chairperson when there is business to conduct. All members will be notified in advance of the meetings. A quorum consisting of the majority of committee members is necessary to conduct business.

## **ARTICLE VI. – AMENDMENTS TO BY-LAWS**

6.1 By-laws may be initiated by a majority vote of the CVEA Executive Board and approved by a majority vote of the CVEA Representative Council.